

SOUTHERN ALLOTMENTS SOCIETY CONSTITUTION

1. NAME

The name of the association shall be **SOUTHERN ALLOTMENTS SOCIETY**.

2. OBJECTIVES

2.1 The objectives of the society shall be

- to promote the interests of allotment holders and to take joint action for the benefit of members;
- to encourage an interest in gardening in the local community.

2.2 To that end the society may, among other things:

- Cooperate with any Committee set up by the government, local authorities and other bodies, to further the interest of allotment holders;
- Take whatever steps required by the local authority and agree additional steps to be taken for the good management and cultivation of the allotment gardens;
- Take steps to protect the members from damage, trespass and theft, where possible;
- Arrange lectures, film shows, demonstrations, competitions and other social events;
- Cooperate with other gardening associations and local organisations, including schools and community groups, in matters of mutual interest.

3. MEMBERS

The society shall consist of all persons in possession of a current tenancy agreement between them and the City Council for the occupation of a plot on the Southern Allotments. There shall be at least one member per plot. (See also "General Meetings" below.)

4. ASSOCIATE MEMBERS

Persons who are not in possession of a current tenancy agreement may become Associate Members of the Society if they:

- regularly work on a plot
- are involved in other activities of the Society

Subject to approval of a general meeting, AGM, the Committee (see below) shall determine which other activities of the society require associate membership."

5. SUBSCRIPTIONS

Every member and associate member shall pay an annual subscription, the amount of which will be decided by a General Meeting. Subscriptions will be payable in advance and as part of the overall rental payment for the members allotment garden.

6. OFFICERS

The officers shall be a Chair, Treasurer and Secretary, who shall be ex-officio members of the Committee. They shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting. Retiring officers shall be eligible for re-election. In the event of an officer retiring before an Annual General Meeting, the Committee shall have the power to appoint an officer.

7. COMMITTEE

7.1 The affairs of the Society will be conducted by a Committee of Management of not less than 5 members. The Committee is charged with the enforcement of the terms of the agreements between tenant and the

Council and with Rules of the Society. (See General Meetings, below.) The Committee shall have the power, in appropriate cases, to revoke membership of the society and to terminate tenancies.

7.2 The Committee may appoint sub-Committees charged with carrying out tasks on behalf of the Committee. Any decision of a sub-Committee shall be subject to approval by the Committee.

7.3 The Committee will retire at the Annual General Meeting but will be eligible for re-election. Casual vacancies shall be filled by the Committee which may also co-opt additional members at any time. Members so appointed shall hold office until the next Annual General Meeting. A quorum at Committee meetings shall be not less than one half of the membership of the Committee (rounded up where there is an odd number) plus one.

8. GENERAL MEETINGS

8.1 There shall be an Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the society of which 21 days' notice in writing (whether by letter or email) shall be given to members.

8.2 The AGM shall receive reports from the officers of the society and shall have submitted to it the Society's audited accounts.

8.3 The AGM shall elect the Committee of the society for the coming year. The AGM shall also either elect the officers of the society for the coming year or give authority to the Committee to appoint officers from its members.

8.4 The AGM shall approve the Rules of the Society and any amendments to those Rules. The Rules of the Society shall consist of the rules of the City of Manchester Council incorporated in the agreements between tenants and the Council, any clarification of those rules as they apply to the Southern Allotment site and any additional rules agreed by the Society insofar as those rules are consistent with the City Council rules.

8.5 Voting shall be on the basis of one member one vote irrespective of the number of plots cultivated except that there shall be no more than one vote cast per plot and a member may designate a non-member to cast a vote on his or her behalf. Unless specified elsewhere in this constitution, decisions of the AGM shall be by simple majority with the Chair having an additional, casting vote in the event of equal voting.

8.6 A Special General Meeting of the society may be called by the Committee or by any other five members or a General Meeting of which 21 days' notice in writing (whether by letter or email) shall be given to members. Ten members shall form a quorum at a Special General Meeting and in the case of equal voting the Chair shall have a casting vote.

8.7 All members are entitled to attend Annual and Special Meetings. Other persons who work plots on the Southern Allotments site may also attend. Persons who are neither members nor persons working plots may attend at the invitation of the Committee.

8.7 No party-political or sectarian discussions shall be raised or resolutions proposed at either Committee or General Meetings.

9. FUNDS

The Committee shall open a bank account in the name of the Society and all monies received from any source on behalf the Society shall be paid into such account. The account shall have at least three signatories of which any two shall sign cheques. Society funds will not be spent by the Committee other than to pay rent for any lease between the Society and Manchester City Council or its successors, or unless it directly benefits allotment holders on the site.

10) AUDIT

10.1 The AGM shall appoint an auditor who shall not be a member of the Committee.

10.2 The auditor shall submit a report at the Annual General Meeting.

11. AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION AND RULES OF THE SOCIETY

11.1 Any proposed amendments to this Constitution and to the Rules of the society shall be notified to the members at least 21 days in advance of an Annual or Special General Meeting.

11.2 Amendments to the Constitution shall be approved by at least a two thirds majority of those present.